
-

-

-

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 
SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

I , 1· Un J ~ r· fl ,.. 
\.,; , • . • -. vC. t...vnK t.0 



-

-
-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditor's Report 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Basic Financial Statements: 

Governmental-wide financial statements: 
Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Activities 

Fund Financial Statements: 
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to 

Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities 
Statement of Financial Position - Property Fund 
Statement of Activities - Property Fund 
Statement of Cash Flow - Property Fund 

Note to the Financial Statements 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Budgetary Comparison - General Funds 
Notes to Schedule of Budgetary Comparison 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards 

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major 
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with 
OMB Circular A-133 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Section I. - Summary of Auditor's Results 
Section II. - Financial Statements Findings 
Section III. - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 

EXHIBIT-I- FINDING A ND Q UESTIONED COSTS CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

1-2 
3-12 

13 
14-15 

16 

17 
18-19 

20 
21 
22 

23-24 
25-42 

43 

44 
45-46 

47-48 
49 

50-52 

53-56 

57 
58 
59 

60-65 

66-69 



-

-

-

MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 



-

-
-

C~ PA. q;~ JV~ 
Certified Public Accountant MEMBER: 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
Puerto Rico Society of Certified Public Accountants 

PO BOX 408, 44 RAFAEL LASA ST., AGUAS BUENAS, PR 00703 TELEFONO: 787-732-8020 - FAX: 787r?J2·Q~85-E MAIL: cardiaz@prtc.net 
I ~ I 

,,.,/ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Municipal Legislative Body 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Adjuntas, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major funds, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Ad juntas as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2009 which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of the business-type activities. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report 
have been furnish to us, and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Valle Verde, 
are based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audit Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respect the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major funds, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Municipality of Ad juntas as of June 30, 2009, and the respective 
changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED): 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report date December 23, 
2009 on our consideration of Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of 
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of 
our audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 12 
and 43 through 46 are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary 
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We 
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we 
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Municipality of Adjuntas basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures offederal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office 
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applies in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relations to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

December 23, 2009 
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico 

License No. 1339 
Expire December 1, 2010 
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The stamp No. 2446973 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants was 
affixed to the original of this report. 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

MANAGEMENT AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Adjuntas (Municipality) financial performance 
provides an overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2009. Please 
read it in conjunction with the financial statements, which begin on page 13. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Municipality has reported assets amounting to $30.10 million in the accompanying 
statement ofnet assets, of which most significant are capital assets and cash and cash equivalents 
amounting to $17.79 million and $9.39 million respectively. 

• Also, the statement ofnet assets for the governmental activities of the municipality shows $15.70 
millions in capital assets without debts. It represents that the capital assets of the Municipality 
are not pledged with neither long nor short-term liabilities. 

• The Municipality has defendant of a lawsuit filed by approximately 82 individuals who claims 
political harassment and discrimination. During June 30, 2005 the Municipality paid $1,365,000 
under operational loans to 20 out of 82 plaintiffs. On November 2006 the jury determined in 
favor of the 62 plaintiffs for the amount of $12,500,000. This sum must be paid within one 
hundred and twenty days from entry of this judgment. During fiscal year 2009 the Municipality 
paid $620,000 under operational loan to distribute to 62 plaintiffs. In 2009 the Municipality paid 
$620,000. As of June 30, 2009, the liability amounted to $10,746,793 is recorded in the 
governmental wide financial statement. 

• During the year, the Municipality reported revenues of$9.09 million in the general fund of total 
revenues restricted and unrestricted of $14.35 million. 

• The Municipality has reported total expenses amounting to $10.26 million in the accompanying 
statement of activities. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities (on page 15 through 17) provide information about the activities of the 
Municipality as a whole and present a long-term view of the Municipality·s finances. Fund financial 
statements start on page 20. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were 
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also 
report the Municipalities' operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing 
information about the Municipality' s most significant funds. 

3 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION A ND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

The Municipality' s financial statements include three components: 
1. the government-w ide financial statements 
2. the fund financial statements 
3. notes of the financial statements 

These components are described below: 

Government-wide financial statement: The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide to readers with a broad overview of the Municipality's operations and finance as a whole in a 
manner similar to private-sector business. These statements provide short-term and long-term 
information about the Municipality's financial position, which assist the Municipality' s management to 
determine the economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. These financial statements are prepared 
using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This 
basically means that these financial statements follow methods that are similar to those used by most 
businesses. They take into account all revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2009 even if cash involved have not been received or paid. The Government-Wide Financial 
Statements include: (1) the Statements of Net Assets and (2) the Statement of Activities. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities report information about the Municipality as a 
whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the 
current year ' s revenues and expenses are taken into account regard less of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Municipality's net assets and changes in them. You can think of the 
Municipality's net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the 
Municipality' s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the 
Municipality 's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Municipality's 
property tax base and the condition of the roads, to asses the overall health of the Municipality of 
Ad juntas. 

In the statement of net assets and the statement of activities, we divide the Municipality into: 

• Governmental activities- Most of the Municipality's basic services are reported here, including 
the municipal police, public works, garbage disposal, public energy and health services, and 
general administration. Property taxes, municipal license tax, state and federal grants finance 
most of these activities. 

Fund Financial Statement: Report the financial position and results of operations of the Municipality's 
governmental funds. The fund financial statement components are the balance sheet-government funds 
and the statements ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance. The fund financial statements 
provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the Municipality as a who le. Some 
funds are required to be established by bond covenants. 

4 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

The Municipality's basic services are reported in the governmental funds, that uses an accounting 
approach which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end 
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified 
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to 
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Municipality's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to 
finance the Municipality's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between 
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental.fonds in a reconciliation on this report. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statement: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in government-wide and the fund financial statements. 

THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

The Municipality ' s combined net assets increased in the current year by$ 4.39 millions, to total $4.55 
million at end of year. Table I and 2 focus on the net assets and changes in net assets of the 
Municipality's governmental and business-type activities for the current year. 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total assets 

Table 1 

NET ASSETS 
(in Million) 

Long-term debt outstanding 

other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 

Restricted for: 
Debt services 

Capital project 
Other specified purpose 

Unrestricted 

Net Assets 

5 

2008 2009 
$ 12.09 $ 12.30 

13.41 17.80 

25.50 30.1 0 

(23.14) (22.03) 

(4.22) (3.51) 

$(27.36) $(25.54) 

10.74 10.67 

0.31 0.63 

0.81 0.62 

(13.72) (7.37) 

$ (l.86) $ 4.SS 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Components of Net Assets 

Current and Capital assets Long-term deti Other Habilities 
ether assets oltstancing 

Table 2 
Changes In Net Assets 

(In Million) 

Revenues 2008 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 0.42 
Operating grants and contributions 1.27 
Capital grants and contributions 2.13 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 1.29 
Municipal license tax 1.21 
Gants and entitlements 5.98 
Other income 0.98 

Total revenues $13.28 

Program expenses: 
General administration $ 5.40 
Public safety 0.53 
Education 0.77 
Public works 2.85 
Health and welfare 1.83 
Other 0.27 

Total Expenses: $11.65 

Increase in Net Assets $ 1.63 

6 

02009 

112008 

2009 

$ 0.43 
1.32 
3.57 

1.05 
2.28 
6.13 
0.36 

$15.14 

$ 5.01 
0.47 
0.78 
1.09 
2.05 
0.32 

$ 9.72 

$ 5.42 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

Net assets of the Municipality' s governmental activities increased by $5.42 millions in the current year. 
Unrestricted net assets is the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without 
constraints estab lished by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal requirements. 

Financial analysis of the Municipality's Governmental Funds 

The Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. The focus of the Municipality' s governmental fund is to provide information on near-term 
inflow, outflow, and balance of spend able resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
Municipal ity's financial requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of fiscal year . 

Governmental Activities 

The principal revenues of the Municipality are composed of property taxes and grant contributions. The 
Mayor of the Municipality of Ad juntas continued with an aggressive collections procedure especially in 
the property taxes area and submitted state and federal proposals to get competitive grant awards. Also, 
the Mayor of the Municipality implemented an adequate budget control and record keeping, which 
benefits the Municipality in its management decisions and operations. These are the main reasons to end 
operations with a significant surplus. 

Expenses during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 was substantially related to the following: 

Table 3 
Governmental Activities 

(in Million) 

Total expenses 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Public Work 

Culture, recreation and 
education 

Health and welfare 

Interest on long term debt 

Totals 

7 

$ 5.40 

0.52 

2.85 

0.77 

1.83 

0.27 

$11.64 

$5.01 

0.47 

1.09 

0.78 

2.05 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Total Expense 2008 
1.83, 16% CGeneral Government 

a Public Safety 

CPublic Wortc 

• Culture ad recreation 

a Health and welfare 

0 Interest on long-tenn debt 

0.52, 4% 

0.32, ~!. Total Expense 2009 

• General Government 

a Public Safety 

II Public Wort< 

a Culture ad 1'9Creation 

).78, 8% 0.47, 59/o 
• Health and -lfare 

Olnterest on long.term debt 

1 .09. 11•.(. 

The cost ofall governmental activities this year was $9.72 million compared to $11.64 million last year. 
Table 2 presents the cost of each of the Municipality of Ad juntas largest programs. 

The major sources of general revenue are property taxes, municipal sales taxes, and grant and 
contributions not restricted, which in total represent $9.46 (96%) and $8.2 (87%) ofall revenues in 2009 
and 2008, respectively. 

8 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE Y EAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Property taxes 

Table 4 
Governmental Activities 

(in Million) 

Municipal license taxes 
Grants and contributions 

Totals 

Table 5 
Governmental Activities 

(in Million) 

General revenues 
by major sources 

2008 

$1.29 
.95 

5.97 

$8.21 

Program revenues 
by major sources 

2008 

Charges for service $ .42 
Operating grants 

and Contribution 
Capital grants and contributions 

$4.00 
$3.50 
$3.00 
$2.50 
$2.00 
$1 .50 
$1.00 
$0.50 
$0.00 

, 
, 
, 
, 
, 
, 
, 

<C 

I 

Totals 

Program Revenues 
(in million) 

-

- .. 
i 

J ~ 

1.27 
2.13 

ll82. 

1111 

' 
" ' 

·'. 
J 

Charges for service Operating Grants Capital Grants & 
and Contribution Contributions 

9 

2009 

$ 1.05 
2.28 
6.13 

$9.46 

2009 

$ .43 

1.32 
3.57 

$5.32 

I 
I 

I 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

THE MUNICIPALITY'S FUND 

As the Municipality completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$7.38 million, which is more than last year total of $6.19 million. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Once the Municipal ity's budget for the fiscal year 2008-2009 was approved on June 2008, the financial 
decisions were taken based on the available appropriations. However, during the course of the year, the 
Municipal Legislative Body revised the Municipality of Adjuntas' budget to adjust the original 
projections to the actual needs of the citizenship. The budget amendments fall into various categories. 
The first category includes transfers between expenditure accounts and the second one includes revisions 
to the amount of budget originally approved. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2009, the Municipality of Adjuntas had $15.70 millions invested in a broad range of 
capital assets, including buildings, parks, roads, bridges and equipment. 

Table 6 
Capital Assets at Year-End 

(Net of depreciation, in Millions) 

Governmental Activities 

Land and land improvements $ 1.98 

Buildings and improvements 5.53 

Construction in process 3.33 

Infrastructure 1.68 

Equipment 0.69 

Totals $13.21 

10 

$ 1.98 

5.37 

1.14 

6.37 

0.84 

$15.:ZO 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

Infrastructure 

Construction in 
process ~l~~r~il"""'_,,, 

25% 

Capital Assets at Year-end 2009 

Infrastructure 
41% 

in process 
7% 

Capital Assets at Year-end 2008 

Land and Land 
..---------Improvement 

Equipment 
5% 

15% 

Land and Land 
Improvement 

13% 

Buildings and 
Improvements 

34% 

More detailed information about the Mun icipality's capital assets is presented in Note 9 to the financial 
statements. 

Debt 

At year-end, the Municipality of Adjuntas had $20.77 millions, in bonds, notes and other outstanding 
debts as shown in Table 7. 

Table 7 
Outstanding Debt, at Year-End 

(in Thousands) 
Governmental Activities 

Bonds and Notes payable 
Advances from CRIM 
Other obligations 

Totals 

11 

$ 7.63 
l.78 

12.34 
$21.75 

$ 7.28 
1.74 

11.75 
$20.77 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Outstaod.ing Debt, at Year-end 2008 
Advances from 

Bonds and Notes 
Payable 

35% 

Bonds and Notes 
Payable 

35% 

CRIM 
8% 

Advances from 
CRIM 

8".4 

Outstanding Debt, at Year-end 2008 

Other obligations 
57% 

Other obligations 
57% 

The Municipality is required to limit the amount of general obligation debt to I 0% of the total 
assessment of property located within the Municipality, for bonds to be repaid with the proceeds of 
property taxes restricted for debt services. Other obligations include accrued vacation and sick leave; 
and claims and judgments. More detailed information about the Municipality' s long-term liabilities is 
presented in Note I 0 to the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The Municipality's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 
2010 budget. The most significant change in the next year's budget in comparison with the amounts 
included for the year ended June 30, 2009, is the increase in the estimated of municipal license and 
construction taxes. For these two revenue accounts the Municipality considered the taxes to be collected 
for the construction of various major projects as a part of the new administration governmental program. 

Budgeted expenditures are expected to rise accordingly to the increase in budgeted revenues. 

If these estimates are realized, the Municipality's budgetary general fund balance is expected to increase 
modestly by the close of2010. 

CONTACTING THE MUNICIPALITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers and creditors with a general overview 
of the Municipality's finances and to show the accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact us at the Municipality of 
Adjuntas, PO Box 1009, Adiuntas, Puerto Rico 00601. 

12 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

As OF JUNE 30, 2009 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS -TYPE 

ASSETS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,965,444 $ 1,890 

Cash with fiscal agent 4,418,680 
Accounts receivable: 

Other government agencies 741 ,412 564,630 
Property taxes 969,710 
Sale Tax 25,987 

Other assets 483 
Restricted cash 620,943 
Capital assets, net 15.699,488 2,087.683 

Total Assets 26,820.721 3,275.629 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 487,283 712,453 
Deferred revenue 2,089,237 
Due to other government agencies 222, 117 
Long-term debt: 

Due within one year 11 ,738,314 100,01 8 
Due in more than one year 9.028,946 1.166.596 

Total Liabilities 23.565,897 1.979.067 

Net Assets: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,845, 154 821 ,069 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 634,820 

Capital projects 1,086,277 

Revenue for replacement and others 620,943 

Unrestricted (8,3 11,427) (145,450) 

Total Net Assets (deficiency) $ 3.254.824 $1.296.562 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

13 

TOTAL 

$ 4,967,334 

4,418,680 

1,306,042 
969,710 
25,987 

483 

620,943 
17,787,171 

30.096.350 

1,199,736 
2,089,237 

222,117 

11 ,838,332 
10.195,542 

25,544,964 

10,666,223 

634,820 
1,086,277 

620,943 

(8,456,877) 

$ 4.551.386 
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FUNCTIONS AND PROGRAMS 

Governmental activities: 

General administration 
Public safety 
Education, culture and recreational 
Public works and sanitation 
Health and welfare 
Interest 

Total governmental activities 

Business type-activities: 
Capital outlay 
Housing 
Interest 

Total 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJlJNT AS 

ST A TEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

OPERATING CAPITAL 
CHARGE FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND 

EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ (5,014,723) $ 109,944 
(472,841) 120,704 
(775,012) 864,895 

(1 ,093, 115) $3,240,035 
(2,051,758) 222,373 

(315.288) 

(9,722,737) 1,317,916 3.240.035 

327,697 
(511 ,467) $430,596 

(28,967) 
(540,434) 430,596 327.697 

$(10,263,17 1) $430,596 $1,3 17,916 $3,567,732 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NET 
(EXPENSE)/ 
REVENUE 

$( 4,904, 779) 
(352, 137) 

89,883 
2,146,920 

(1 ,829,385) 
(315.288) 

(5.164,786) 

327,697 
(80,871) 
(28,967) 
217,859 

$( 4,946,927) 

(Continue) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 

Net (expense )/revenue $(5, 164, 786) $ 217,859 
General revenue: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes 1,050,710 
Municipal tax 545,709 
Sale tax 1,090,505 
Construction excise Taxes 640,979 

Grants and entitlements 6,130,294 
Interest 158,370 18,776 
Rent 27, 133 
Other 172,607 760 

Total general revenues 9,816,307 19,536 

Changes in net assets 4.651,52 1 237.395 

Net assets at beginning, as 
provisions reported (2,915,598) 1,059, 167 

Restatement 1.518,901 

Net assets at beginning, as 
restated (1,396,697) 1,059.167 

Net assets at end $ 3.254.824 $1,226,562 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOTAL 

$ (4,946,927) 

1,050,7 10 
545,709 

1,090,505 
640,979 

6,130,294 
177, 146 
27, 133 

173,367 

9,835,843 

4.888,916 

(1 ,856,431) 
1,518,901 

(337,530) 

$ 4,551,386 



.... 

-
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL F UNDS 

As OF J UNE 30, 2009 

STATE 
LEGISLATIVE 

JOINT OTHER 
GENERAL RESOLUTIONS $4,322,000 GOVERNM ENTAL 

FUND FUND LOAN FUND FUNDS 

Cash: 
Cash in bank including $1 ,831 ,332 $ 57 1,603 $2,562,509 

Cash with fi scal agent $3,302,1 12 1,116,568 

Receivables: 
Amount due from: 

Governmental agencies 12 1, 149 620,263 
Other funds 735,073 2,485,993 916,973 

Property tax 738,543 23 1,167 

Sale tax 25,987 

Total assets $3.452.084 $3.057.596 $3.302 I 12 $5.447.480 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued 

$ 145,690 expenses 
$ 55,200 $ 200,671 

Deferred revenues 969,456 2, 145,520 

Due to other fund 1,955, 178 1,058,348 1,124,513 

Due to other government agency 222,l 17 

Total liabilities 3,292.441 I, I I 3,548 3,470,704 

Fund balance 
Unreserved 159,643 1,944,048 $3 ,302, 112 

Unreserved, reported in non major: 
Other purposes J,976,776 

Total fund balance 159,643 1,944,048 3.302,11 2 1,976.776 

Total liabilities and fund balance $3,452,084 $3,057,526 $3,302,112 $5,441,480 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOTAL 
GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

$ 4,965,444 
4,418,680 

741,412 
4, 138,039 

969,710 
25,987 

$15.259,212 

$ 401 ,561 

3,114,976 
4,138,039 

222.I 17 

7,876,693 

5,405,803 

1,976,776 

7,382,579 

$15,252,212 



-
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2009 

Fund balances in governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Deferred revenue in the governmental funds that are recorded as revenue 
in the statement of net assets. 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds: 

Bonds and notes payable 
Compensated absences 
Claims and judgments payable 
Advances from CRIM 
Accrued interest 
Due to other agencies 

Net assets of governmental activities 
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$ 7,382,579 

15,699,488 

1,025,739 

(7,28 1,000) 
(955,757) 

(10,746,793) 
(1, 738, 108) 

(85,722) 
(45,602) 

$ (3,254.824) 



-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

STATE 
LEGISLATIVE 

JOINT OTHER TOTAL 
GENERAL RESOL TIONS $4,322,000 GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNME~TAL 

F ND F NOS LOAN FUJ\D FUNDS FUNDS 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes $ 860,424 $ 164,959 $ 1,025,383 
Municipal taxes 545,709 545,709 
Sale Tax 683,573 406,932 1,090,505 
Excise tax 640,979 640,979 

Grants and entitlements 6, 147,046 $ 513,693 4,027,506 10,688,245 
Interest 15,248 17 $ 12 1,457 21 ,648 158,370 
Rent 27, 133 27,133 
Other 171.968 639 172.607 

Total revenues 9,092,080 513,710 121,457 4,621,684 14,348,93 1 

Expenditures: 
General administration 4,873,218 89 693,821 5,567,128 
Public safety 459,707 459,707 
Educational and recreational 603 ,686 2,654 606,340 
Public works 1,097,553 544,864 645,642 1,527,982 3,816,041 
Health sanitation and welfare 908,128 997 I, 135,065 2,044,190 
Litigation 
Debt service: 

Principal 350,000 350,000 
Interest 315,288 315.288 

Total expenditures 7,942,292 545,950 645,642 4.024,810 13,158,694 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
expenditures $1 .1 49.788 $ (32 ,2.4.Q) $(524.18~) $ 596.874 $ 1.190.237 

(Continue) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF REVEN ES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES I N F UND BALANCE-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS {CONTI NUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

STATE 
LEGISLATIVE 

JQrNT OTHER 
GENERAL RESOL T IONS S4,322,000 GOVERNMENTAL 

FUND FUND LOAN FCND FUNDS 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures $ 1,149,788 $ (32,240) $ (524, 185) $ 596.874 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfer in 376,598 338,200 
Operating transfer out (336,592) (121.457) (256,749) 

Total other financing sources 40 006 (121,457) 81 451 

Excess of revenues and other 
financing source over expenditures 
and other financing sources 1,189,794 (32,240) (645,642) 678,325 

Fund balance at beginning of year (1,030,15 1) 1,976,288 3.947,754 1,298,451 

Fund balance at end of year $ 15.2,64;JJ $!,244,048 $3,302, 112 $I ,27~1776 

J~ 
f)trf~\Q 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOTA L 
GOVERN M E 'TAL 

FUNDS 

$1.190.237 

$ 714,798 
(714,798) 

I , 190,237 

6,192,342 

$7,382,572 



-

-

... 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN F UND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL 

F UNDS TO THE ST A TEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets, the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. 

Governmental funds report principal payments on long-term debts as 
expenditures, whereas the principal payments reduce the long-term debt in the 
statement of net assets. 

Amount receivable from other agencies that are not available m the 
governmental funds financial statements. 

Change in accrued expenses and deferred revenues which do not require the use 
of current financial resources: 

Compensating absences 
Litigation settlement 
Deferred revenue 
Interest 

Governmental funds report payments of other long-term debt as expenditures 
whereas the payment reduces the long-term is the obligate in the statement of 
net assets. 

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities, 
but they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, 
depreciation expense is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 
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$1,190,237 

3,074, 179 

350,000 

36,981 

(130,703) 
620,000 
(47,306) 
35,652 

110,697 

(588,216) 

$4.651.521 



-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION-PROPERTY FUND 

J UNE 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Business Activities 
Valle Verde Project 

Current Assets: 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 

Non current assets: 
Property and equipment 
Restricted deposits 
Other Assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Current maturities of mortgage note 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Mortgage note, net of current maturities 

Net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 1,890 
564,630 
566,520 

2,087,683 
620,943 

483 

$3.275.629 

$ 100,018 
712,453 
812,471 

1,166,596 
1,979,067 

1,296.562 

$3.275.629 



-

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES-PROPERTY FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Business Type Activities 
Valle Verde Project 

Revenues: 
Rent 
Financial 
Capital project grant 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
Administrative 
Utilities 
Operating maintenance 
Taxes and insurance 
Depreciation 
Interest 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets 

Project net assets, beginning of year 

Project net assets, and year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 430,596 
19,536 

327,697 

777,829 

136,400 
18,330 

148,414 
41 ,186 

130,335 
28,967 

503,632 

274,197 

1,022,365 

$1.296,562 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receivable from tenants and HUD 
Interest 
Other cash receivable 

Administrative 
Management fees 
Salaries and wages 
Utilities 
Operating and maintenance 
Miscellaneous taxes and insurance 
Interest on mortgage 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Deposit to reserve for replacement and 

interest retained in account 
Withdrawals from replacements reserve 
Deposits to and interest earned and retained 

for insurance escrow 
Withdrawals from insurance escrow 
Withdrawals from residual receipt account 
Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Net cash flows used by financing activities: 
Mortgage principal payments 
Checks drawn in excess of cash balance 

Net decrease in cash 

Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 
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$ 439, 137 
18,776 

371.301 
829,214 

129,209 
(46,444) 

(I 04,601) 
(I 8,330) 

(180,134) 
(38,659) 
(29,733) 

(288,692) 

540,522 

(46,906) 
220,846 

(15,882) 
20,794 

6,206 
(673,678) 

(488,620) 

(I 02,066) 
50,870 

(51, 196) 

706 

1.184 

$ 1.890 

(continue) 



-

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

STATEMENT OF CHAS FLOWS-PROPRIETARY F UND (CONTlNUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Change in the net assets 

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Receivables 
Tenant security deposits 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Pollution remediation obligation 
Accounts payable 
Payroll 
Accrued interest 
Tenant security deposits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$274.197 

130,335 

51,386 
516 

(79,608) 
160,026 

4,466 
(766) 

(30) 
266,325 

$540.522 



-

1. ORGANIZATION 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
J UNE 30, 2009 

The Municipality of Adjuntas (the Municipality) is a political and legal entity with full legislative 
and administrative faculties in every affair of municipal character, with personal succession, 
existence and legal personality separate and independent from the governmental of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 

The municipal government is comprised of the executive and legislative bodies, which are elected 
every four years in the Puerto Rico general elections. The executive power is exercised by the Mayor 
and the legislat ive power by the Municipal Legislative Body, which has twelve members. 

The Municipality provides the following services to its community: health, public works, education, 
public safety, housing, community and social services, welfare, culture and recreation, as well as 
many other general and administrative services. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Municipality relating to the funds included in the 
accompanying basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting 
principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the 
publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (when applicable). The more s ign ificant policies of the Municipality are described 
below. 

Reporting entity 

A reporting entity consists of the primary government, component units, and other organization that 
are included to ensure that financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the 
Municipality consists of all funds and departments that are not legally separate from the 
Municipality. For the Municipality of Adjuntas, these include various services such as police 
protection, recreation (including parks), street maintenance and repair, sanitation, and general 
administrative services. The operation of each of these activities is directly controlled by the 
Municipality's Legislative Body through the budgetary process. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Municipality is financially 
accountable. The Municipality has no component units. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2009 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Government wide and fund financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all the activities of the primary government and its component units. 
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities wh ich normally are support mainly by taxes and intergovernmental revenues 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally 
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include a) charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
functio'n or segment and b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

The fund financial statement segregate transactions related to certain functions or activities in 
separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. These 
statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non­
major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. 

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds: 

1) General Fund 

This is the operating fund of the Municipality and accounts for all financial resources, except 
those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

2) State Legislative Joint Resolutions Fund 

This fund accounts for revenue sources provided by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Legislature for the development of capital projects and other community services. 

3) $4,322,000 loan fund 

This fund accounts for resources provided by a loan for the development of capital projects. 
This loan will be repaid with the state sale tax. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2009 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both 
government and business like activities, are presented using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The governmental fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Under this method revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, except for debt service, compensated absences and claims and 
judgments expenditures which are reported when payment is due . 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December I, 1989 
generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards 
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business­
type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not 
to follow subsequent private sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all 
taxes. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to 
use restricted resources first, than unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2009 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued) 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in fund net assets, and a statements of cash flows for the proprietary fund 
which causes of a low income Housing project know as Valle Verde Housing. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) 
are include on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and change in fund 
net assets present increases (revenues) and decrease (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses 
are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. 

Operating revenues in the proprietary fund are those revenues that are generated from the primary 
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating 
expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund . All other 
expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

Cash, cash equivalents, cash with fiscal agent and investment 

The Municipality' s finance director is responsible for investing available resources. The Municipality 
is restricted by law to invest only in savings accounts and certificates of deposit with banks qualified 
as a depository of public funds by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department (PRTD) or in instruments of 
the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GOB). The Municipality' s policy is to invest 
any excess cash in interest bearing deposits with institutions qualified by the PRTD. Earnings from 
these funds are recorded in the corresponding fund as interest income. 

Cash with fiscal agent in the governmental fund consists of unused proceeds from bonds and notes 
issued for the acquisition and construction of major capital improvements. Cash with fiscal agent in 
the debt service fund represents special additional property tax collections retained by the Municipal 
Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) and restricted for the payment of the Municipality's debt service, 
as established by law. 

The Municipality considers all investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. 

Interfund receivables and payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to/from other funds (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or advances to/from other funds (i .e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). 
Interfunds receivables and payables between funds within the governmental activities are eliminated 
in the statement of net assets. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2009 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Capital assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which is normally 
immovable and of value only to the Municipality, such as roads, bridges, streets sidewalks, and 
drainage system), are reported in the applicable governmental columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. The Municipality has elected to not capitalize infrastructure acquired before the 
implementation date of GASB 34 (July 1, 2003). 

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost. 
Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date donated. Additions, improvements 
and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other 
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. When historical cost is not 
available it is estimated using historic sales of the year of the acquisition of the related capital assets. 

Depreciation in capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Building 
Equipment and vehicles 
Infrastructure 

50-40 years 
5-10 years 

40 years 

The Municipality decides when to capitalize an asset using a capitalization threshold of $25. No 
depreciation is recorded the year of acquisition. 

Reservation of fund balance 

Reservations of fund balance represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a 
specific future use or are not appropriated for expenditure. The Municipality has the followi ng 
reservations of fund balance: 

1) Debt/ service 

Represents net assets available to finance future debt service payments. 

2) Capital projects 

Represent the reservations of amounts available under state grant programs and loans for capital 
projects. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FLNANClAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2009 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Risk financing 

The Municipality carries insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses. Insurance 
policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the 
gross property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (the "CRIM") for the year 
ended June 30, 2004 amounted to approximately $93, 773. The current insurance policies have not 
been cancelled or terminated. The CRIM also deducted approximately $240,385 for workers 
compensation insurance covering all municipal employees. 

Compensated absences 

Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to maximum of 60 days. 
Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the first day of work. 
Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum 90 days. In the 
event of employee resignation, the employee is paid for accumulated vacations days up to the 
maximum allowed. 

Separation from employment prior to use of all or part of the sick leave terminates all rights for 
compensation, except for employees with ten years or more of service who are entitled to sick leave 
pay up to the maximum allowed. 

Employees' maximum allowed vacations and vested sick benefits are accounted for in the statement 
of net assets. 

Post Employment Benefits 

Pursuant various Acts, the Municipality is required to cover annually the 3% increase (cost ofliving 
allowance) in the retirement plan of it ' s retires employees. Substantially all of the employees may 
become eligible for these benefits of they reach normal retirement to while working for the 
Municipality. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, post employment benefits retirees amounted 
to $71 ,927. These benefits are recorded as expenditures in the general fund when notified by the 
retirement plan. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2009 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Restatement 

The net assets as presented in the 2008 financial statements have been restated to record capital 
assets amounted to $1,518,901. 

3. PROPERTY TAX 

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return, which is to be filed by May 15 
of each year with the Municipal Revenue Collector Center (the CRIM), a governmental entity 
created by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico . Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each 
piece of real state and on each building. 

The assessment is made as of January I of each year and is based on current values for personal 
property and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on personal property must 
be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in two 
installments by July 1 and January I. 

The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections ofreal and personal property taxes on behalf 
of all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Before the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs 
the Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuing 
fi scal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the initial 
estimated collections. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal 
year basis, where by a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and 
amounts actually collected from taxpayers. 

This settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal 
year-end, and a final settlement made not later than six months after year-end. If the CRIM remits to 
the municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable 
from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected 
by the CRIM, a liability to the CRIM is recorded at June. 30. 

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property taxes 
on the first $15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempt amounts, the Puerto Rico Treasury 
Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property assessed at 
less than $3,500 for which no payment is made. As part of Law No. 83 of August 30, 1991 , as 
amended, the exempt amount to be paid by Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the Municipalities 
was frozen as of January 1, 1992. In addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of 
personal property taxes of up to $50,000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of 
less than $150,000. 

31 



-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN ED) 

J UNE 30, 2009 

3. PROPERTY TAX (CONTINUED) 

The annual rate for fiscal year 2009 is 8.53% for real property and 6.53% for persona l property of 
which 1.03% of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 6.0% and 4.0%, respectively, 
represent the Municipality's basic property tax rate, which is appropriated for general purposes and 
accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization fund 
together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico Electronic Lottery and subsidy 
from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all 
municipalities; (b) 1.50% represents the special ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and 
accounted for in the debt service fund. The Commonwealth also contributes an annual tax rate of 
0.2% of the property tax collected. 

On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42, as amended, was enacted wh ich authorized the CRIM to obtain 
a loan up to $200 million, and for a term not exceeding 30 years, to a ll ow for the financing of the 
debt that the municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of 
property tax advances vs. actual collections through fiscal year 2000-200 I. The amount that the 
municipalities wi ll collect from the additional property taxes resulting from the increase in the 
subsidy from the central government to the municipalities was assigned through this law to repay 
such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 
1999. As of June 30, 2009, the amount due to CRIM amounting to $1 ,738, 108 is presented as other 
long-term debt (see Note 9). 

Total property tax receivable, net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $5,097,302, 
amounted to $969,710 at June 30, 2009. The composition of property taxes receivable and the 
related deferred revenues is a fo llows at June 30, 2009: 

General Fund Debt Service Fund Total 

Gross property taxes receivable $4,620,713 $1 ,446,299 $6,067,012 
Less: 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 3,882,170 1,215,132 5,097.302 

Net property taxes receivable $ 738.543 $_23 1J6i $ 969.710 

Deferred (unavailable) property 
tax revenues in GFFS $ 71Q,255 $__222 5 2 $ 233,487 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
J UNE 30, 2009 

4. VOLUME OF BUSINESS TAX 

The municipal license tax is levied annually based on the volume of business of certain businesses 
and industrial organizations that operate in the Municipality. The tax rates are 1.50% for financing 
institutions and .50% for the other business institutions. The taxpayers must file a return not later 
than April 15 of every year and the tax is payable in two installments, due in July 1 and January 1 of 
the following fiscal year. The amount levied could be paid with a five percent (5%) discount if 
payment is made on or before the filing date. The Municipality levied and collected during the year 
ended June 30, 2009, $166,249 corresponding to the following fiscal year volume of business tax. 
This amount was recorded as deferred revenue. 

5. SALETAX 

The Municipal Legislature approved the Ordinance no. 3, series 2006-07 establishing a sales tax to 
1.5% effective November 15, 2006. Pursuant to the provisions of the Law number 80 of July 29, 
2007 and effective August 1, 2007, the citizenship contribution was uniformly established in 1.5% of 
which 1 % is collected by the Municipalities and the remaining .5% is collected by the Treasury 
Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This Law uniformed the use of the contribution 
of 1.5% in the following activities; solid waste disposal costs, recycle, public works and 
improvements, health services and security service. 

6. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues sources consist of contributions received from certain quasi-public 
corporations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, such as the Puerto Rico Electric Power 
Authority. ln addition, the Municipality receives some subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico which include, among others, a subsidy for general operations and for the financing of capital 
improvements. The intergovernmental revenues are recorded in the general fund, except for those 
that are legally restricted for expenditure for specified purposes which are recorded in the other 
governmental funds. 

7. DEFERRED REVENUE 

Municipal license tax collected in the fi scal 
year 2008-2009 corresponding to the 
following fiscal year. 

Portion of grants received for which qualifying 
expenditures have not been incurred. 

Property tax receivable but not available in the 
governmental fund financial statements 

Amount due from other agencies but not available in 
governmental fund financial statements 
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$ 166,249 

1.922,988 
2,089,237 

933,487 

92,252 

$3.114.976 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2009 

8. RESTRICTED DEPOSIT 

Under the term of the Administrative Order, Valle Verde Housing (the Project) is required to set 
aside specified amounts and the surplus cash deposits for the replacement of property and other 
project expenditures as approved by USDA-Rural Development. 

The Project maintains a restricted cash account for insurance escrow. In add ition, all tenant security 
deposits are deposited into a separate bank account and held in trust for the tenants until they vacate 
the property. Any amounts not returned to the tenant due to leave violations are transferred to the 
Projects' general operating account. Restricted funds are held in separate accounts and are not 
available for operating purposes. 

Restricted cash in the business-type activities consists of: 
Escrow deposit 
Tenant security deposits 
Reserve for replacement 
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$ 17,202 
12,970 

590,771 

$620.943 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2009 

9. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows: 

Balance 
Primary Government June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases 

Governmental activities: 
Capital asset, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,983,180 
Construction in progress 3,333,447 $ 894.496 $3,089,371 

5,316,627 894.496 3,089,371 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings 7,411,721 

Equipment and vehicles 3,815,015 431,155 
Infrastructure 1,683,808 4.837.900 

Total capital assets being depreciated 12,910,544 5,269,055 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 1,881,219 162,043 
Equipment and vehicles 3, 132,427 275,928 
Infrastructure 150,245 

Total 5.013.646 588.216 

Total depreciable capital assets, net 7,896,898 4,680,839 

Governmental activities capital assets net 13,213,525 5,575,335 3,089,371 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and land improvements 362,859 
Construction in progress 196,667 507 978 

559,526 507,978 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Building and improvements 4,070,690 
Equipment 478 409 6 721 

4,549,099 6,721 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Building and improvements and 

equipment 3,405,306 130,335 

Total depreciation, capital, assets net 1,143.793 (123,6 14) 

Business activities capital assets, net 1,703,319 384,364 

Total $14,216,844 $5,252,622 $3,082,311 
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Balance 
June 30, 2009 

$ 1,983,180 
1. 138,572 
3,1 21,752 

7,41 1,72 1 

4,246, 170 
6,521,708 

18,179.599 

2,043,262 
3,408,355 

150,245 

5,601.862 

12,577,737 

15,699.489 

362,859 
704 645 

1,067,504 

4,070,690 
485,130 

4,555,820 

3,535,641 

1,020,179 

2,087,683 

$ ! Z,Z8Z, 172 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

J UNE 30, 2009 

9. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

General administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Education, culture and recreation 
Health, sanitation and welfare 
Housing 

Total depreciation expense 

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 47,589 
13,134 

351 ,253 
168,672 

7,568 

$__5_8_8_. 2 1 6 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$130,335 

$130.335 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows: 

Primary Government 
Governmental activities: 

Notes and bonds payable 

Other long-term debt: 
Claims and judgments 

payable 
Compensated absences 
Amount due to: 

CRIM 
PR Electrical Power 

Authority 
PR Department of labor 

Total 

Business-type activities: 
Mortgage payable 

Total 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 7,631 ,000 

11 ,366,793 
825,054 

1,775,089 

52,365 
103 934 

2 1,754,235 

1.368,680 

lli, 122,215 

Additions Reductions 

$350,000 

620,000 
$ 130,703 

36,981 

52,365 
58,332 

130,703 1,117,678 

102.066 

$130,7Q3 $1 ,212,744 
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Ending 
Balance 

Due within 
one year 

$ 7 ,281 ,000 $ 307 ,000 

10,746,793 10,746,793 
955,757 600,000 

1,738,108 38,919 

45,602 45,602 
20,767,260 11 ,738,314 

1.266.614 100,018 

$22,033,871 $ 11 ,838,332 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

J UNE 30, 2009 

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED) 

Governmental activities: 

A. Notes and Bonds: 

$245,000 Public Improvement Serial Bond of 1988 payable in two annual 
installments of $16,000 and $17,000 through January 2011 plus interest at 5%. 

$595,000 Public Improvement Serial Bonds of 1988 payable in two annual 
installments of $39,000 to $42,000 through January 1, 2011, plus interest at 5%. 

$200,000 Public Improvement Serial Bond of 1990 payable in annual installments 
ranging from $ 11 ,000 to $15,000 through January 1, 20 15, plus interest at 5%. 

$465,000 Public Improvement Serial Bond of 1995 payable in an annual 
installment of$55,000 on July 1, 2009, plus interest at 6.20% 

$1,355,000 Special Obligation Note of 1993 payable in quarterly installments 
$20,000 through April 1, 2013, plus interest at Libor 90 days plus 1.25%. 

$400,000 Special Obligation Bond of 1996 payable in annual installments ranging 
from $20,000 to $40,000 through January 1, 2015, plus interest at LIBOR 90 
days plus 1.25% 

$I ,365,000 General Municipal Obligation Bond of 2004 payable in annual 
installments ranging from $40,000 to $85,000 through July I, 2029 plus interest 
at5%. 

$6 19,000 Special Obligation Note of2006 payable in annual installments ranging 
from $94,000 to $ 106,000 through July 1, 2012, plus interest at Libor 90 days 
plus 1.25%. 

$6 19,000 General Municipal Obligation Bond of 2007 payable in annual 
installment ranging from $1 1,000 to $52,000 through July 1, 203 I plus interest 
at LIBOR 90 days plus 1.25% 

$95,000 General Municipal Obligation Note of 2009 payable in annual 
installments ranging from $ 10,000 to $5,000 though July I , 20 14 plus interest at 
LIBOR 90 days plus 1.25% 

$4,322,000 Special Obligation Note of 2008 payable in annual installments of 
$85,000 to $367,000 through July I, 2003 plus interest at 7.25%. 
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$ 33,000 

81,000 

75,000 

55,000 

300,000 

205,000 

1,225,000 

300,000 

600,000 

85,000 

4,322,000 

$7.281,000 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2009 

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED) 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity bonds and notes payables of June 30, 2009 are as 
follows: 

Notes and Bonds Payable 
Year ended June 30 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2033 

Advances from CRIM 

Governmental - type Activities 

Principal Interest 

$ 307,000 $ 339,293 
407,000 436,929 
360,000 431,562 
378,000 408,680 
204,000 390,569 

1,065,000 1,746,637 
1,289,000 1,361 ,132 
1,739,000 851,234 
1,532,000 216,765 

$7,281 ,QOO $6,182,801 

This amount represents the balance owed to CRIM at June 30, 2009 as described in Note 3 and is 
payable in monthly installments of$ I 0,922 through 2032 including interest at 6.1 %. The advances 
from CRIM mature as follows: 

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest 

2010 $ 38,918 $ 107,093 
2011 40,977 104,651 
2012 43 ,165 102,080 
2013 45,491 99,372 
2014 47,963 96,518 
2015-2019 282,686 433,981 
2020-2024 372,428 334,678 
2025-2029 494,136 203,409 
2030-2032 372.344 41.588 

$1. 738.108 $1,523,31Q 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2009 

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED) 

Business-type activities: 

Mortgage notes payable in monthly installments of$17, 157, including interest at 8% through 2018. 

The note is collateralized by land and building. The note matures as follows: 

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest 

2010 $100,018 $105,866 
2011 103,575 102,309 
2012 107,259 98,625 
2013 111 ,074 94,810 
2014 115,025 91,452 

2015-2018 729,663 104,999 

$1.266.614 $598.061 

11. POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATION AND RELATED THIRD-PARTY 
RECOVERY 

Based on a comprehensive Asbestos-Containing Material (ACM) survey engaged by the project' s 
management agent, it was determined that the project's buildings containing asbestos materials that 
need to be removed in accordance with Puerto Rico Environmental Quality Board (EQB) 
regulations with the use of proper engineering controls . 

At June 30, 2009, the project has accrued its best estimate of its obligation regarding the removal of 
asbestos materials, which is presented under the caption pollution remediation obligation in the 
accompanying balance sheet. The estimated liability is obtained from the construction 
certifications. Since the removal of asbestos materials is already contracted, management believe 
the possibility of change in estimate is low. 

The estimate cost of the removal of asbestos material will be paid with resources provided by two 
capital project grants totaling $426,806 awarded by the Puerto Rico Department of Housing, while 
additional resources totaling $36,802 from the project's reserve for replacement account were 
authorized and committed by HUD to cover the remaining cost of the removal of asbestos. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2009 

12. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

Effective June 30, 2009 the Project retroactively changed its method of recognizing pollution 
remediation obligations in its financial statements to conform with a recent pronouncement of the 
governmental accounting standards board. The project did not reflect on its financial statement, 
pollution remediation obligations. It disclosed on the notes the estimated contingency. Under the 
new accounting method, the pollution remediation obligation is recognized in the financial 
statements when an obligating event has occurred. 

13. RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Employees' Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its instrumentalities (the 
"Retirement System"), created pursuant to Act. No. 44 7 of May 15, I 95 I, as amended, is a cost­
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by, and reported as a component 
unit of the Commonwealth. All regular employees of the Municipality hired before January 1, 
2000 and under 55 years of age at the date of employment became members of the Retirement 
System as a condition to their employment. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a 
refund of his/her accumulated contributions. 

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to legislation 
enacted by the Commonwealth' s legislature. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement 
and the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation. 
Disability benefits are available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. 
However, a member must have at least ten years of service to receive non-occupational disability 
benefits. 

Members who have attained at least 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of 
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten years of 
creditable services are entitled to an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The amount of the 
annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by 
the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two percent of the average 
compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in excess of20 
years. In no case will the annuity be less than $200 per month. 

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the 
Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent of the 
average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the average 
compensation, as defined. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
J UNE 30, 2009 

13. RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED) 

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first $550 of their 
monthly gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $550 of monthly gross salary. The 
Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross salary. 

The Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 305 on September 24, 1999, which amends 
Act No. 447 to establish, among others, a defined contribution savings plan program (the 
"Program") to be administered by the Retirement System. All regular employees hired for the first 
time on or after January I , 2000 and former employees who participated in the defined benefit 
pension plan and are rehired on or after January I , 2000 become members of a Program as a 
condition to their employment received a refund of their contributions. In addition, employees who 
at December 31 , 1999 were participants of the defined pension plan, had the option, up to March 31, 
2000, to irrevocably transfer their prior contributions to the defined benefit pension plan plus 
interest thereon to the Program. 

Act No. 305 requires employees to contribute 8.275% of their monthly gross salary to the Program. 
Employees may elect to increase their contribution up to 10% of their monthly gross salary. 

Employee contributions are credited to his/her individual account established under the Program. 
Participants have three options to invest their contributions to the Program. Investment income is 
credited to the participant's account semi-annually. 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Municipality is required by Act No. 305 to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross salary. 
The Retirement System will use these contributions to increase its asset level and reduce the 
unfunded status of the defined benefit pension plan. 

Upon retirement, the balance in the participant's account will be used to purchase an annuity 
contract, which will provide for a monthly benefit during the participant's life and 50% of such 
benefits to the participant's spouse in case of the participant's death. Participants with a balance of 
$10,000 or less at retirement will receive a lump-sum payment. In case of death, the balance in the 
participant's account will be paid in a lump-sum to his/her beneficiaries. Participants have the 
option of a lump-sum or purchasing an annuity contract in case of permanent disability. 

Total employee and employer contributions to the above mentioned plans during the year ended 
June 30, 2009 amounted to approximately $I 73, 779 and $204,494 respectively. This amount 
represented I 00% of the required contribution for the corresponding year. 

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2009, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

J UNE 30, 2009 

14. CONTINGENCIES 

Claims and Judgments: 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of 
the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by the 
grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Municipality expects such amounts, ifany, to 
be immaterial. 

The Municipality is defendant and or codefendant in several litigations arising out of the normal 
Municipality' s operations. Most of the cases are covered by insurance. Management, after 
consultation with legal counsel is of the opinion that the ultimate liability, in excess of insurance 
coverage, if any, resulting from such pending litigations will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Municipality' s financial position. 

The Municipality was named defendant of a lawsuit filed by approximately 82 individuals who claim 
political harassment and discrimination. On December 3, 2001 , a jury determined in favor of 20 out 
of 82 plaintiffs for the amount of $6,956,400 which amount was paid in full. During the year the 
ended June 30, 2005, the Municipality paid the amount of $1 ,500,000 to the plaintiffs. In add ition, 
the Puerto Rico Secretary of Justice ordered to the Puerto Rico Treasury Department to pay the 
remaining amount. The remaining 62 plaintiffs and the Municipality reached a agreement to settle 
the claims which was approved by the Municipal Legislative Body approved the settlement. On 
November 2009, the parties stipulated to pay $12,500,000 to the remaining 62 plaintiffs. As of June 
30, 2009, the balance of such liability amounted to $10,746,793 which has been recorded in the 
governmental activities financial statements. At present, there is not a payment plan to liquidate such 
liability. 
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Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes 
Municipal tax 
Sale tax 
Construction excise tax 

Grants and entitlements 
Interest 
Rent 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General administration 
Public safety 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCHEDULE OF B UDGETARY COMPARISON 

FOR THE YEAR E NDED J UNE 30, 2009 

GENERAL FUND 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET BUDGET 

$ 868,280 $ 868,280 
406,000 406,000 
671 ,540 671,540 
897,746 897,746 

5,489,975 5,489,9 75 
56,100 56,100 
33,000 33,000 

334,860 334,860 

8,757,501 8,757,501 

4,955,992 5,533,002 
539,450 468, 138 

Education, culture and recreational 761 ,290 627,523 
Public works and sanitation 1,426,334 1,169,549 
Health and welfare 1,074,435 959,289 

Total expenditures 8,757,501 8,757,501 

Excess of revenue over expenditures $ $ 

44 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
FAVORABLE 

ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE} 

$ 860,424 $ (7,856) 
545,709 139,709 
683,573 12,033 
640,979 (256,767) 

6, 147,046 657,071 
15,248 (40,852) 
27,132 (5,868) 

548,568 213,708 

9,468,679 711,178 

5,2 17,012 315,990 
461 ,920 6,218 
610,420 17,108 

1, 151 ,565 17,984 
926,938 32,351 

8,367.855 389,646 

$1,100,824 $1, 100,824 



-
-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To SCHEDULE Or B UDGETARY COMPARISON 

JUNE 30, 2009 

1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The Municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for 
the General Fund. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for special revenue funds 
because effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through legal and contractual grant 
requirements provisions. 

2) On or before May 15, the Mayor submits to the Municipal Legislative Body a proposed 
operating budget for the fi scal year commencing the following July I. The operating budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means for financing them. 

3) Prior to June 13, the budget is legal ly enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

4) The Municipal Legislative Body approves, by ordinance budget appropriations by functional 
basis. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any 
fund ; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approved by 
the Municipal Legislative Body. 

5) Unused appropriations for the annual budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year. 

The budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The actual results of operations, 
presented in the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual General Fund, is in 
conformity with the budgetary accounting of the Municipality for a better comparison with the 
budget information. 

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as capital projects, debt 
service and special revenue funds because projects are funded on a multi-year nature, generally 
requiring several years to complete or effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through 
general obligation bond indentures and legal and contractual grant agreement provisions. No legal 
budget is adopted for other thon general fund. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY COMPARISON (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2009 

2. RECONCILIATION OF GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS 

Adjustments necessary to reconcile the revenues and expenditures of the General Fund at the end of 
the year, from the generally accepted accounting principles to budgetary basis, are as follows: 

Excess of revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures and other financial sources 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAA) 

Adjustment to adept building basis to (GAA) 

Excess of revenue over expenditures (Budgetary Basis) 
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$1 , 189,794 

88,970 

$1.100.824 



COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

NUMBER 

US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Passed through: 
Municipal Service Administration: 

Community Development Block Grant/ 
State Grant 14.228 

Direct Program: 
Section 8 - Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 

US Department of Health and Human Services 
Direct Program: 

Head Start 93.600 

US Department of Agriculture 
Passes through: 

Puerto Rico Department of Education 
Child an Adult Care Food Program 10.558 

US Department of Home and Securitv 
Passes through: 

PR Office of Management and Budget (GAR) 
Public Assistance Grant 97.036 
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DISBURSEMENT 

$1 , 178,149 

219,643 

849,000 

66,421 

339,657 

$2,652,87Q 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of 
Municipality of Adjuntas and is prepared on the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Accordingly, 
amounts presented in the accompanying schedule agree to amounts presented in the basic financial 
statements. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARD 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Municipal Legislative Body 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Adjuntas, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the financial statements of governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Municipality of Adjuntas, as ofand for the year ended June 30, 2009 
which collectively comprise the Municipality of Adjuntas ' basic financial statements and have issued our 
report there on dated December 23, 2009. Others auditors audited the financial statements of The Valle 
Verde Housing, as described in our report on Municipality of Ad juntas' financial statements. This report 
does not include the results of the other auditors ' testing of internal contro l over financial reporting of 
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financing Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness 
of the Municipality of Adjuntas ' internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of Ad juntas' internal control over financial 
reporting. 

Our consideration of internal contro I over financial reporting was for the I im ited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, 
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies. 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED): 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of 
control deficiencies, that adversely affects Municipality of Ad juntas' ability to initiate, authorize, record, 
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of Municipality of Adjuntas' 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Municipality 
of Adjuntas' internal control. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financing reporting. 
(Finding 01-09) 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected by Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessary disclose all significant 
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that none of the 
significant deficiencies described above is a material weakness. 

Compliance and Other Material 

A part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of Adjuntas' financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions oflaws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instance of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as finding 01-09. 

Municipality of Adjuntas' response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of finding's and questioned cost. We did not audit Municipality of Adjuntas' 
response and accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Municipal Legislative Body, 
others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

December 23, 2009 
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico 

License No. 1339 
Expires December I, 20 I 0 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
REQUIREMENT APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Municipal Legislative Body 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Adjuntas, Puerto Rico 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Municipality of Ad juntas, with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that 
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. Municipality of 
Adjuntas' major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor' s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of finding and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirement of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants appl icab le to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the 
Municipality of Adjuntas' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipality of 
Adjuntas' compl iance based on our audit. Municipal ity of Adjuntas' basic financial statements include the 
operations of the Valle Verde Housing (business type activities), which expensed $1 ,973,531 in federal awards 
which is not included in the schedule during the year ended June 30, 2009. Our audit described below did not 
include the operation of the business type activities because those statements were audited by other auditors. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stated; and OMB Circular A- 133, Audits of State and Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-1 33 require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Municipality of Adjuntas' 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not 
prov ide a legal determination on Municipality of Adjuntas' compliance with those requirements. 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENT APPLICABLE (CONTINUED): 

As described in items 01-09 to 01-04 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost the 
Municipality of Ad juntas did not comply with requirements regarding Davis Bacon Act that is applicable to the 
HUD Community Development Block Grant Program and requirements regarding special eligibilities test and 
provisions, and reporting that are applicable to Housing Choice Vouchers Programs. Compliance with such 
requirements is necessary in our opinion, for Municipality of Adjuntas to comply with the requirements 
applicable to that program. 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliances described in the preceding paragraph, the Municipality of 
Ad juntas complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each 
of its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2009. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Municipality of Ad juntas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality of Ad juntas' internal control 
over compliance with requirement that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control over 
compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be sign ificant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as discussed below, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be sign ificant deficiencies and other that 
we consider material weakness. 

A control deficiency in an entity's internal contro l over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, o r combination of control deficiencies, that adversely 
affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that 
noncompliance with a type of comp I iance requirement of a federal program that is more that inconsequential 
will not be prevented or detected by the entity' s internal control. We considered the deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule and questioned cost as items 01-09 and 04-09 
to be significant deficiencies. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
that a remote likelihood that materia l noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program wi ll not be prevented or detected by the entity' s internal control. 

We do not consider any of the deficiencies described in the companying schedules of findings and questioned 
cost to be material weaknesses. 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENT APPLICABLE (CONTINUED): 

Municipality of Adjuntas' response to the findings in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
finding 's and questioned cost. We did not audit Municipality of Adjuntas' response and accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management and the Municipal Legislative 
Body of the Municipality of Adjuntas, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended 
to be and shou ld not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

December 23, 2009 
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico 

License No. 1339 
Expire December l, 20 I 0 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency (s) identified 

that is not considered a material weaknesses. 

Noncompliance material to financial statement noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not considered 

to be material weakness (es) 

Type of auditor' s report issued on compliance for 
major programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of 
Circular A-133 

Identification of major programs: 

Unqualified 

__yes .X..no 

_K_yes _no 

_K_yes _no 

_yes .X..no 

.x..yes __ no 

Qualified 

__ no 

CFA Number(s) Name of Federal Program 

93.600 
14.228 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B programs: 

Audit qualified as low-risk audited? 
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Community Development Block 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING 

Finding No. 01-09 

Accounting system 

Condition: 

The Municipality has not established accounting procedures, control and records necessary to provide 
accurate information to prepare the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

During our examination we noted the following matters: 

a) The bank reconciliations are not compared to general ledger and differences noted, if any, are not 
promptly adjusted. 

b) The accounting system did not recognized most of the payroll transactions. Such transactions are 
recognized manually at year end. 

c) The manually prepared checks are not recorded in the computerized system. 

d) The financial statements were prepared from worksheets manually prepared. 

Criteria: 

The Sections 8.010 (a), (c) and (d) of the Law 81 state that the accounting system establishes by the 
Municipality should by designed to present complete and accurate information of the result of operations, 
adequate control and accountability of all the funds necessary forthe administration of the Municipality. The 
Law also states that the procedures to collect and deposit municipal funds and control the municipal property, 
should have adequate controls that prevent the commitment of irregularities and permit that if such 
irregularities are committed, the responsibility for such irregularities be establ ished. 

Effect: 

The occurrence of these conditions may result that all transactions are not recorded in the financial 
statements and that any error could not be detected promptly. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the Municipality establishes an adequate accounting system to ascertain that all 
transactions are properly recorded. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Q UESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 02-09 - Davis-Bacon Act 

Federal Program 

CFDA - 14.228 Community Development Block Grant 

Compliance requirement: 

Davis-Bacon Act 

Category: 

Compliance 

Condition: 

As part of our audit procedures we examined 5 disbursements to test the compliance with the Davis­
Bacon Act for Public Assistance Grants program. In one disbursements amounting to $139,582, the 
contracts do not state that the contractor is required to submit such information. However, the contractor 
submitted the payrolls to the Municipality for examination. 

Criteria: 

40 USC 3141-3 144, 3146, and 314 7 require that when required by the Davis-Bacon Act, the Department of 
Labor's (DOL) government-wide implementation of the Davis-Bacon Act, or by federal program legislation, 
all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or subcontractors to work on construction contracts in 
excess of$2,000 financed by federal assistance funds must be paid wages not less than those established for 
the locality of the project (prevailing wage rates) by the DOL. 

Non-federal entities shall include in their construction contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act a requirement 
that the contractor or subcontractor comply with the requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act and the DOL 
regulations (29 CFR part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contacts Governing Federally 
Financed and Assisted Construction"). This includes a requirement for the contractor or subcontractor to 
submit to the non-Federal entity weekly, for each week in which any contract work is performed, a copy of 
the payroll and a statement of compliance (certified payrolls) (29 CFR sections 5.5 and 5.6). This reporting is 
often done using Optional Form WH-347 which includes the required statement of compliance (OMB No. 
1215-0149). 

Effect: 

The Municipality could be exposed to administrative action by the grantor. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Questioned cost: 

None 

Recommendation: 

We recommend the Municipality to establish an adequate internal control system to ascertain compliance 
with the Davis-Bacon Act. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

SECTION ill - FEDERAL AW ARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 03-09 - Waiting List 

Federal program 

CFDA No. 14.871 - Housing Choice Voucher 

Compliance requirement: 

Special Tests and Provisions - Waiting List 

Category: 

Compliance 

Condition: 

During our examination, we noted that a Participant admitted to the program was not selected from the waiting list 
as required by the administrative plan. No documentation in the Participant's file was found for this determination. 

Criteria: 

24 CFR sections 5.410, 982.54(d), and 982.20 1 through 982.207 establish that the PHA must have written 
policies in its HCVP administrative plan for selecting applicants from the waiting list and PHA 
documentation must show that the PHA fo llows these policies when selecting applicants for admission from 
the waiting list. Except as provided in 24 CFR section 982.203 (Special admission (non-waiting list)), all 
fami lies admitted to the program must be selected from the waiting list. "Selection" from the waiting list 
generally occurs when the PHA notifies a family whose name reaches the top of the waiting list to come in to 
verify eligibility for admission. 

Effect: 

The continue occurrence of the condition may result in the disallowance of program cost. In addition, the ability to 
manage federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts grant awards could also 
questioned. 

Questioned costs: 

None 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the Municipality establish an adequate internal control system to ascertain compliance with 
the requirements of the program. The internal control system should include at least that file should be revised the 
internal audit department. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 04-08 - Eligibility Test - Section 8 

Federal program 

CFDA No. 14.871 -Housing Choice Voucher 

Compliance requirement: 

Eligibility 

Category: 

Compliance 

Condition: 

As part of our audit procedures we select 10 participants file to test the eligibility and special test and 
provision requirements of the Housing Choice Voucher Program and the following exceptions were noted: 

Exceptions 

No documentation of citizenship. 3 

Criteria: 

24 CFR Section 982.516 established that PHA must; for both family income examinations, obtain and 
document in the family file third party verification of: (I) reported family annual income, (2) the value of 
assets, (3) expenses related to deductions from annual income and ( 4) others factors that affect the 
determination of adjusted income or income based rent. 

24 CFR Sections 5.230, 5.609, and 982.516 established that as a condition of admission or continued 
occupancy; require the tenant and other family members to provide necessary information, documentation, 
and releases for the PHA to verify income eligibility. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ANO Q UESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2009 

SECTION ill - FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 05-08 - Reporting-Section 8 

Federal program 

CFDA No. 14.871 - Housing Choice Voucher 

Compliance requirement: 

Reporting 

Category: 

Compliance 

Condition: 

During our examination, we compared the annual reported in the voucher Management System and the 
amount pay general ledger and note following deficiencies: 

MONTH VMS GENERAL LEDGER DIFFERENCE 
Hap Payment 
July 2008 $ 14,479 $15,590 $1,1 11 
October 2008 15,740 16,169 429 
January 2009 14,679 15,999 L320 

$44.898 $47.758 $2,860 
Administrative Expense 

July 2008 1,811 2,968 ] '157 
August 2008 2, 174 2,383 209 
September 2008 1,982 2,388 406 
October 2008 1,909 2,35 1 442 
November 2008 1,957 2,361 404 
December 2008 2, 129 2,550 421 
January 2009 974 1,359 385 
February 2009 1,943 2,529 586 
March 2009 2,227 2,727 500 
April 2009 2,852 3,259 407 
May 2009 3,458 3,737 279 
June 2009 3,095 1.267 (1,828) 

$26.51 1 $29.879 $ 3.368 

Criteria: 

HUD-52681-B, Voucher for Payment of Annual Contributions and Operating Statement (OMB No. 
2577-0169) required that Municipality submit quarterly. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 04-09 - Reporting-Section 8 (continued) 

Effect: 

The continue occurrence of the condition may result in the disallowance of program cost. In 
addition, the ability to manage federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions 
of contracts grant awards could also questioned. 

Questioned costs: 

None 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the Municipality establish an adequate internal control system to ascertain 
compliance with the requirements of the program. 

65 



-

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

EXHIBIT- I 

FINDING AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 
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FINDING NO. 01-09 A tint?: Svst 

Proeram Deficiency Objectives 

a. The Bank Establish an adequate 
reconciliations are not accounting system 
compared to general that permit that all 
ledger and differences transaction are 
noted, if any, are not properly recorded 
promptly adjusted. 

b. The accounting 
system did not 
recognized most of 
the payroll 
transactions. Such 
transactions are 
recognized manually 
at year end. 

c. The manually 
prepared checks are 
not recorded in the 
computerized system. 

d. The financial 
statements were 
prepared from 
worksheet manually 
prepared. 

( r I 

MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 
Federal Programs Corrective Action Plan 

Prepared March 2010 

G I Fund 

Key Tasks/ 
Action Items Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Establish None David-Bacon Act Finance Director 
supervision and and Accountants 
quality control 
measures. 
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Actual Implementation 
Completion Completion Progress/ 
Target Date Date Comments 

June 30, 20 I 0 
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Pro£?:ram Deficiency Objectives 

Community Obtain all copies of 
Development Block payroll and state in 
Grant of Municipality of the contract all 
Adjuntas does not information required 
observed the for the all 
compliance with Davis- contractions contract 
Bacon Act Contracts in excess of$2,000 
do not state that the finance by federal 
contractor is required to assistance Funds. 
submit such 
information. 

FINDING NO. 03-09 Waitin!! L' 

Pro£?:ram Deficiency Objectives 

The PHA does not I. Update written 
select from waiting list procedures. 
in accordance with the 
PHA selection policies. 2. Prepare the waiting 

list according to the 
priorities and 
preference order. 

[ { 

MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 
Federal Programs Corrective Action Plan 

Prepared March 2010 

. , . 

Key Tasks/ 
Action Items Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Maintain relationship None David-Bacon Act Federal 
with all Contractors Program 
that execute work to Director 
municipality and 
obtain all payrolls 
paid with federal 
assistance fund. State 
in the contract the 
in formation required. 

s 8 CFDA - 14.871 H Choice V h 

Key Tasks/ 
Action Items Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Establish supervision None HCV Guidebook Director & 
and quality control Technician 
measures. program 
Keep the waiting list 
manageable without 
creating a 
management burden. 
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Actual Implementation 
Completion Completion Progress/ 
Tar£?:et Date Date Comments 

Done 

Actual Implementation 
Completion Completion Progress/ 
Tar£?:et Date Date Comments 

Done 
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Pro2ram Deficiency Objectives 
The PHA does not Obtain all documents 
obtain from from household such 
Household and other as: fam ily annual 
member of the fam ily income; the value of 
if any and document in assets; expenses 
the family file third related to deductions 
party verification. from annual income; 

and other factors that 
affect the 
determination of 
adjusted income or 
based income rent. 

FINDING NO. 05-09 R •" "'"' 

Program 
Deficiency Objectives 

Annual Reported in The Municipality will 
the Voucher ensure that every 
Management information send 
System and the through VMS System 
amount pay General are accurate and 
Ledger were actually 
difference. 

I l 

MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 
Federal Programs Corrective Action Plan 

Prepared March 2010 

s c 8 c 

Key Tasks/ 
Action Items Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

The PHA must obtain None 24CFR985.5 I 6 1.HCV 
and document in the Coordinator 
tenant file third party 
verification or must 2.HCV 
document in the tenant Accountant 
file why third party 
verification was not 
available: Reported 
Family Annual 
Income; the value of 
assets; expenses 
related to deductions 
from annual income; 
and other factors that 
affect the 
determination of 
adjusted income or 
based income rent. 

Section 8 CFDA-14.871 H - Choice V h 

Key Tasks/ Action 
Items Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Establish an adequate None OMB No. 2577- HCV 
internal control system 0169 accountant 
to obtain all 
in formation about 
expenditure, HAP 
payment and income 
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Actual Implementation 
Completion Completion Progress/ 
Tani:et Date Date Comments 

May 3 1, 2010 

Actual Implementation 
Completion Completion Progress/ 
Tar11:et Date Date Comments 

Done 


